# MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING FOR THE COLUMBUS GEORGIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS PENSION AND BENEFIT TRUST FUND Called Meeting

# June 13, 2024

## TRUSTEES PRESENT:

Mayor, Skip Henderson, Chairman; and Finance Director, Angelica Alexander, Secretary

TRUSTEES ATTENDING VIRTUALLY: City Manager, Isaiah Hugley, Vice Chairman; Ricky Boren, Trustee; Roderick Graham, Trustee; Lisa Goodwin, Trustee; Jack Warden, Trustee; Elizabeth Cook, Trustee; and Dusty Wilson, Trustee

#### TRUSTEES ABSENT:

Fray McCormick, Trustee

#### OTHERS ATTENDING IN PERSON OR VIRTUALLY:

Pamela Hodge, DCM Finance, Planning & Development; Lucy Sheftall, Assistant City Attorney; Reather Hollowell, Human Resources Director; Cynthia Holliman, Senior Pension Plans Administrator; Gwen Ruff, Columbus Water Works; Savonne Monell, Columbus Water Works Representative; Angela Allison, Columbus Water Works, Clifton Fay, City Attorney, and Glen Arrington, Recording Secretary

### **ADVISORS:**

Chuck Carr, Southern Actuarial Services; and Constance Brewster, Troutman Pepper

\*

#### CALL TO ORDER

Mayor, Skip Henderson, called the June 13, 2024, meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Columbus Georgia Public Employee Retirement Systems Pension and Benefit Trust Fund to order. Attendance was taken and quorum was present and confirmed.

Mayor Henderson stated that this meeting has been called meeting for the board to discuss an ordinance requested and recommended by Councilor Davis and others. Because this meeting is to discuss policy and not investment performance, allocation or funding, it is open for public attendance but not for public comment. Mayor Henderson stated that this board's purpose is not political. The Board's purpose is to provide input to best protect the pensions of former, current and future CCG employees. The Board may decide to vote to recommend Council approves the ordinance; they may vote to recommend the Council does not approve the ordinance; or they may decide there is not sufficient information to make any recommendation. The mayor then turned the meeting over to Clifton Fay, City Attorney.

Minutes other than summary minutes will be released on a delayed schedule to protect the release of information made confidential by Official Code of Georgia Annotated Section 47-1-14(c) and (d).

Clifton Fay thanked the mayor for allowing him to participate in the meeting. He reported on a new development regarding virtual meetings for the Board of Trustees for large retirement systems. Since the Governor signed new legislation in February, this Pension Board will be able to meet like this with a virtual quorum with some members in the room. He noted that the same ability to meet virtually does not apply to council meetings.

He explained that the proposed amendment to be discussed proposed by Councilor Davis and others, will allow a retired city employee who is currently receiving a city pension to be appointed or elected to fill a vacancy on the Columbus Council and not have to suspend their current city pension. The draft ordinance had been distributed to Board members and those in attendance. He advised that pension attorney, Constance Brewster of Troutman Law Firm in Atlanta has worked with the City Attorney's office the last week to prepare an ordinance at the Councilor's request. He then turned the meeting over to Mrs. Sheftall and Mrs. Brewster so that they could go through each proposed change. Mr. Fay stated that it is straightforward. The changes will allow a person receiving a city pension to continue receiving that pension if they are appointed or elected as a councilor.

Lucy Sheftall, Assistant City Attorney, informed the board that when they looked at the ordinance, there were a lot of edits or small changes that were all crafted to make one change. She contrasted what happens now with and then what would happen under the proposed ordinance. Currently, part time city employees who are drawing an active retirement can come back to work for the city and keep their pension. Full time employees cannot keep their pension if they come back after retirement. They don't lose it forever; it's just suspended during the time they are back in city employment. When that pension is suspended, they are required to rejoin the pension plan and make contributions to start earning a new benefit for their new service.

Councilors are specifically defined by the pension plan as full-time employees; therefore, they are subject to the requirements that their pension be suspended when they come back. The amendment that proposed today would change that so that an active retiree who is drawing a pension from the city plan can come back to be a councilor, not any other elected official, just an elected or appointed councilor, without having his or her pension suspended. The Councilor would keep drawing their pension but would not have the option of paying in and joining the plan again and getting a new benefit. That is sort of the before and after, if you will. Ms. Sheftall then recognized Ms. Brewster of Troutman Pepper to discuss the plan amendments and answer questions.

Constance Brewster then spoke to the board and walked through the ordinance in detail. A copy of the ordinance was displayed. (Please see attachment – Columbus – Ordinance Adopting Plan Amendments re City Council Members Draft 6-13-24)

Looking at section 2.13, this section of the plan is governing creditable service. The idea is if the councilor is not going to be eligible to participate in the plan as an active full-time employee, accruing additional benefits, this section says that any service he performs as a councilor is not considered creditable service. So, this is essentially saying that he can

continue getting his pension, but the service that he has as a councilor is not going to count towards accruing any new benefits under the pension plan. Mrs. Brewster then opened to receive questions regarding this section of the amendment.

Moving to section 2.19, this deals with earnings. So, like in section 2.13 this clarifies that this councilor is not eligible for pension or building his service, we are also saying that any earnings the councilor receives as a councilor is not considered earnings for purposes of accruing a new benefit in the plan.

Moving to section 2.24, this is the section of the plan that defines full time employees to include appointed or elected officials as listed, the clarifying change, historically all officials, either appointed or elected have been treated the same. So, we added "appointed" just to clarify so there is no question. And then we added a proviso at the end to say that for any councilor, that he is a former member in pay status who has later entered into employment and sworn in as a councilor on or after July 1, is not going to be considered a full time employee for the purposes of the suspension provision that we will talk about and also for purposes of accruing additional benefits while serving as councilor.

Section 3. 02 is a typographical change that is updating the section reference to reference to the correct numbers. This is just a clarifying piece.

Moving to section 4.06, and this is the heart of what brings this discussion. Pension benefits on reemployment. And this section usually says that if you are a member and you retire, and you are receiving benefits and you are reemployed as a full-time employee, your benefits will be suspended. So, the change is providing an exclusion and to say that if you are reemployed as a councilor, that is sworn in on or after July 1, 2024, that suspension provision no longer applies. So, the councilor may continue to receive pension payments while serving in his councilor role.

Moving down to section 4.06c, Eligibility for and Amount of Additional Pension, we added just for clarification, a provision at the end saying that if a former member comes back as a councilor, and is appointed on or after July 1, we are clarifying that he is not going to be eligible for an additional pension. So, he continues to receive his benefits but does not create any additional pension.

That was the general employee plan. If you move down to section 6, looking at section 2.14, you will see that this is virtually identical to provision 3 in that general governmental employee plan. 2.14 is just saying for this particular councilor, any service as a councilor is not considered creditable service for purposes of creating new benefits.

- 2.20 is the same. It is simply saying that the councilor's service is not considered earnings for purposes of accruing any new benefits.
- 2.25, we are saying that change as with the general governmental plan, the clarification that we are talking about is appointed or elected officials, and then also the proviso is clarifying

that this councilor would not be considered a full-time employee for purposes of the mandatory participation and the suspension of benefit provisions.

Moving to 3.02, this is updating the internal cite reference to ensure that it references the right cite.

Section 4.06, this is the same provision that we talked about in the general government employee plan, we are providing that the suspension of benefits while reemployment as a councilor does not apply.

If we move down, here is a proviso that just clarifies, again, that the councilor will not be eligible to receive an additional pension while receiving pension payments and then providing service as a councilor.

Section 11 just simply has the effective date of the ordinance. So as soon as it is adopted, it will be immediately effective.

Section 12 is the general provision that we include in all of our ordinances. It just says that any parts of the ordinance in conflict with this amendment are repealed and replaced with this ordinance that is adopted.

Mrs. Brewster then opened for questions.

City Manager, Isaiah Hugley expressed his concerns. He stated that, like others, he received the proposed ordinance, red lined less than an hour ago, in fact, looking at the email, he received it at 11:06 AM this morning. And there are several concerns. He stated that he was concerned that the proposed ordinance carves out or creates special legislation to fit one person or one class, members of city council. And it does not provide opportunity for equal treatment to other elected offices or elected officials. He stated that he was also concerned this is done hurriedly and does not allow sufficient time for review by the Pension Board. And it does not allow time for review by the city actuarial consultant. He stated that he assumed that Chuck Carr was with us, but, Mr. Hughley stated, that he did not know that he has had time to review to determine the actuarial impact of the recommended changes to the pension plan.

Chuck Carr responded that he did review the information quickly and stated that for him, it was straightforward. There is no actuarial impact for these changes. He stated that the actuarial concern could be taken off the table.

Mr. Hugley reiterated that he had not had enough time to review it. As a pension board fiduciary, he stated that he didn't know if other members of the pension board had a chance to see it, but he received the ordinance at 11:06. So, with that said, he stated that he was not comfortable voting on this matter today. If he was asked to vote on a matter that he is just received the email at 11:06, and he is expected to digest it or completely understand it, his vote would have to be no. He stated that his preference today is that that pension board would take no action. It is a political matter to leave it to the City Council because whether the

pension board says yay or negative, the council can vote to vote it up or down. And so, with his concerns, at least, he was not comfortable voting today. And his preference would be to take no action and refer it back to the City Council and let them pass their decision.

Mayor Henderson responded that he agreed. The mayor stated that he appreciated Mr. Hugley's comments. He asked if there was anything else that he wanted to add that may have any bearing at all on the main thing that we are discussing?

Mr. Carr stated that he thinks this is strictly a policy issue. From a financial perspective, if he understands it correctly, this only applies to someone who is in payment status. So, they are drawing the pension. And this is an individual who is retired at least from the pension funds perspective, and they are receiving their payments. Our assumption, of course, is that someone will then receive those payments for the rest of their life. So, we don't make any kind of assumption that there would be someone reemployed or anything of that nature. So, to the extent that someone is reemployed and is away or becomes a part of council or what have you, the fact that we would not be, now, with this member suspending their benefit, whereas before, we would, it really doesn't change any of the numbers from an actuarial standpoint. Arguably, it might even be argued that it would save a little bit of money. The savings would be miniscule. But, if he understood the plan right, right now, if someone, if this happens, the pension payments are suspended. But they would accrue additional service and additional benefit for that time that they are reemployed or what have you. So, because generally, these are folks, they are retired, so they are older. The cost of their accruals is generally going to be high as compared to someone who is younger. So, Mr. Carr stated, this is an actuarially neutral ordinance. But the reality is if anything, if it has any impact financially, there might be a very, very, very tiny savings from this, just from the fact that the fund is not going to give these folks additional pension accrual while they are reemployed. He again recommended looking at the issue from a policy perspective.

The mayor thanked the board and participants for making themselves available for this afternoon. He asked if there were any pension board members who had any questions or comments or wanted to clarify how they view their opportunity to recommend this.

Elizabeth Cook stated that she shared a concern and completely understood the timeliness issue. She stated that she works in this area and is familiar with the terminology and it is probably easier for her to understand than some others just because they don't see these words every day. She stated that she, frankly, would probably abstain if there was a vote because she didn't see this as the type of issue that the board deals with. The Board We deal with fiduciary issues. If they were to propose an amendment that had an impact on the plan in which it was something we could speak up for even a policy, but this is a neutral plan design change. She stated that she didn't know that it is up to the board to make the recommendation on neutral plan and design.

The mayor thanked Mrs. Cook for her comments.

Roderick Graham asked, for his clarity, are we talking about making a change that will only apply to an individual that has been voted for or elected as a council person.

Mr. Fay stated that the appointee is not sworn in yet.

Mr. Graham continued with, in the future, as the City Manager was referring to, how will this impact, or does this impact other individuals that retire and maybe want to come back for not an elected position but want to come back in some other capacity working for the City. Will their pension be suspended?

Mrs. Sheftall responded that the rules would stay the same as they are now, if they are only coming back part time, the pension is not suspended. If they are coming back full time, the pension is suspended.

Mr. Graham continued with, is a council position considered full-time or is it considered part time?

Mrs. Sheftall responded that the plan defines it currently as full time.

The mayor asked if there were any more questions or comments from the board.

Dusty Wilson asked if it was possible that we could hear from Councilor Davis as to why this was proposed. It seems fairly obvious that maybe it would allow the people who have great ideas to come back and work full-time in council. But he would worry with the City Manager, does this possibly create something for other areas in the city where somebody could come back and provide a great service, but they are limited or maybe they don't want to do that because they would have to give up their pension.

The mayor stated that typically the board does not allow comments from non-board members. But since this is a direct question to the individual who referred to it, he felt it certainly should be allowed.

Councilor Davis responded that he did not mind giving a little perspective on it. He stated that he thought Mr. Wilson was right. There are a lot of valuable, good, solid citizens in our community that have served this city well. And certainly, for many, many years. 25, 30, 35. You can make a case that they have a lot of knowledge and insight. And they would be good people to represent your city going forward. Taking all names out of this, unbeknownst to any council member, he thought the last time the council dealt with this was when Mayor Wetherington, but everybody was always, of course, he had options at that time with businesses or rental properties and things like that. But it did not matter to him, but we have always considered the mayor or others as full-time positions. And you look at the salary that equates to that. He stated that he thought you could make an argument that the council members are below the poverty level. You could make the argument that if they were full time, you would have to go back and recompensate every council member with minimum wage, which they are not making minimum wage, which is a federal requirement. If councilors were considered full time, he thinks the council members should be compensated in such a way that they are not. He stated that he found out about this idea at the eleventh hour when a letter was mailed out to a day before somebody was being sworn in, told that their, after

they have already gone through a process, that had been initiated, that they were going to, their pension was going to be suspended. Now, if you can imagine being that person, at an age where you have given 30+ years, and you are trying to make a living, and you are trying to have a life and support others, you can't do it. And not just that person, you have other people that have been qualified to run, who would have applied to run. He stated someone recently during the election, it would have applied to him. And he promised the board that they didn't know either. So, it opened his eyes to 1) we need a fact sheet that we can give to any candidate running for any office. They need to understand all the requirements, the ethics, the ethics rules, disclosures, what the rules are so that we are all on a level playing field instead of at the last minute. Because if you get sworn in not knowing and you receive a letter less than 24 hours where you are going to be sworn in that your pension is going to be suspended. Something is wrong with that. Something is really wrong. He went on to say that he thought the city had failed from that standpoint. So, where we are at today is making a correction with council members if an employee who has served the city well wants to be on council, appointed or elected, they have that option, well, it's not really an option, but they can continue to draw their pension. Some people just can't survive. Others can make it happen. And it just depends on where you are in life, and certainly, you can make this a case that certain people could be discriminated against and not allowed that opportunity. It applies, not just to whoever is in the pension plan across the board. It applies to not allowing them an opportunity to serve their city. They can't. Because most people versus serving on council or collecting their pension at such an age, you can't make it work. Or a very few have the opportunity, or the resources make that happen. So, we need to make corrections. And fortunately, as we walked through this thing, we found out the final process has not taken place, therefore a person won't be punitively punished or discriminated against in such a way because they had no idea. Nobody even knew what this ordinance was all about. It doesn't say council people, it just says elected officials, is what it says. That's what the policy says. So, as a council representative, he was looking at that, and the council is trying to make the appropriate changes going forward, where anybody in this city would have the opportunity. If they served this city well, they would have the opportunity to serve. And they don't have to deal with their pension being suspended and not being able to survive and make a living and take care of their family.

The mayor thanked Councilor Davis. He then asked if there were any other questions or comments from the board.

Finance Director, Angelica Alexander, asked a question. In terms of the council, does that also apply to the mayor as part of the council? Or not?

The mayor responded that he thought the mayor was a full-time position. Council is only part time. He stated that he served on council and the idea to serve on council is you have a job, and the council service is sort of a part time job. He stated that he thinks this has not really occurred very often. He stated that Councilor Davis mentioned Wetherington. A firefighter, Watson, dealt with that. In 30 years, it has probably happened twice. But he thought the mayor is considered full time. The council has always been a part-time and, the perk, it was a perk trying to add to council because of the hours they end up working. And that's why they are considered, just for pension and insurance, full time, so that they can qualify.

Mr. Hugley stated that he would state again that his concern is that it provides for a select group and there are other elected officials that could, he used the coroner as an example. And so, they could not retire from the city and then run for coroner and win, if you just single it out to just council members. And a coroner, a person running as a retired city employee for coroner, would earn a salary, in Columbus, Georgia, of \$60,000. And then you would as mayor, or general revenue as you mentioned, he probably earns between \$75 and \$80 thousand, gave up his pension. It means if you, and only the council is mentioned, they had other things, but that says that you are local administrator on low pay. For your pay and you arranged for mayor, you would earn, like you earn, about \$80,000. How does that compare to a city, the second largest city in Georgia. It singles out a certain class, and it does not provide an equal playing field for other retired employees who want to run for office in this city. It says you can only get paid your pension if you run for city council. Not if you run for mayor. Not if you run for coroner. Not if you run for municipal court clerk. You can only do it if you are a councilor. And I question whether that is providing an opportunity for a greater talent to go to the next level or block other than a city councilor position. And it's not an equal and level playing field. And, quite frankly, it's not equal treatment. And that is one of my concerns. As I shared with you earlier, I would leave that to the city council to vote on this matter and not as a pension board member.

Mayor Henderson stated that he agreed. He thought that based on what Elizabeth mentioned and what City Manager, Mr. Hugley said and what he has heard coming from the board, there are a couple of factors to consider. There is going to be an opportunity for first and second reading at council when this comes up. And that is where, he thought, we are seeing this belongs. In the arena discussing whether it is what we want to do for the pension for our government. Mayor Henderson stated, he thought, as Elizabeth pointed out, and Chuck mentioned that it is negligible, the impact on the actual funding of the pension or being able to continue being able to make sure it stays close to being fully funded. He stated what he was hearing is that the board seems to be leaning towards letting the council handle it, whichever route they want to go. For several reasons. One, as you had mentioned and something that Elizabeth had mentioned, but also, because of the short timeline. So, is there any different view or opinion from any members of the board?

Dusty Wilson responded that he would just add that if you pull an amendment plan, like the City Manager says, amend it for all elected officials, not just councilor. He stated that he agrees that there are very good people out there who have a lot of experience and who would like to raise their hand and become a part of the council or another elected position. But he stated that it looks like it says just the councilors and not elected officials. He then asked if there would be any actuarial effects if the amendment included all elected officials.

Chuck Carr responded that it would not change his opinion. He then stated his opinion was not based upon the fact that it was limited to councilors. It could be any elected office. And he stated his answer would be the same, which is it has no actuarial impact. The mayor then stated that he thought it was something that the council would need to take into consideration. And those that would speak to the council when it does come up. The mayor then asked if any of the board members had any issues or concerns.

Mr. Graham stated that this was the question he was getting around to when he asked if it just applied to being on city council. He stated that was what he was reading and what was being explained to the board. The word that was being used was councilor or council member.

The mayor then opened the floor for a motion. No motion was brought forward, so the Board will not forward any recommendation to the council. The ordinance will go before the Council for 1<sup>st</sup> Reading without any recommendation from the Board.

#### **ADJOURN**

With there being no further business to discuss, Mayor Henderson entertained a motion to dismiss. A motion was made by City Manager, Isaiah Hugley. It was seconded by Dusty Wilson. The mayor thanked everyone for taking their time and adjusting their schedules to attend the meeting. The board voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting and the meeting was declared adjourned.

Glen Arrington
Glen Arrington
Recording Secretary

#### AN ORDINANCE

NO. 24-\_\_\_

An ordinance amending the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for General Government Employees, and the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for Employees of the Department of Public Safety (collectively, the "Plans") to address the treatment of retirees in pay status who are thereafter appointed or elected to City Council.

THE COUNCIL OF COLUMBUS, GEORGIA HEREBY ORDAINS:

# SECTION 1.

Section 2.13 of the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for General Government Employees is hereby amended by adding a new Section 2.13(h) to read as follows:

(h) Former Members in Pay Status And Sworn In Councilor on or after July 1, 2024. No employment service following the reemployment of a former Member in pay status who is sworn in as a Councilor on or after July 1, 2024, shall be considered Creditable Service.

### SECTION 2.

Section 2.19 of the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for General Government Employees is hereby amended by adding a new Section 2.19(e) to read as follows:

(e) Former Members in Pay Status And Sworn In as Councilor on or after July 1, 2024. No compensation earned following the reemployment of a former Member in pay status who is sworn in as a Councilor on or after July 1, 2024, shall be considered Earnings.

# SECTION 3.

Section 2.24 of the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for General Government Employees is hereby stricken and replaced by a new Section 2.24 to read as follows:

"2.24 <u>Full-Time Employee:</u> Any Employee whose customary employment is for at least forty (40) hours per week and for twelve (12) months during each calendar year and who is

included in the "position classification plan" adopted by the Council. An Employee who is a court reporter, appointed judge or an appointed or elected Official of the Government shall be deemed a Full-Time Employee. A grant employee identified as "benefit eligible" by the grant administrator shall be deemed a Full-Time Employee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a former Member in pay status who is sworn-in as an appointed or elected Councilor of the Government on or after [July 1, 2024] shall not be deemed a Full-Time Employee for purposes of 4.06 and shall not be entitled to receive any additional benefits under the Plan with respect to service as a Councilor."

#### SECTION 4.

Section 3.02 of the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for General Government Employees is hereby stricken and replaced by a new Section 3.02 to read as follows:

"3.02 Membership Upon Reemployment: Except as provided in Section 4.06(c) regarding the reemployment of a retired Member in pay status, upon the reemployment of an Employee after termination of employment, he shall become a Member on his reemployment date, provided he is an Eligible Employee on such date and be subject to all requirements of new Members on that date. Any reemployed Member who satisfies the conditions set forth in Section 2.1213(c) for re-establishing Creditable Service, shall be entitled to an Adjusted Employment Date which shall be calculated by taking his re-employment date and backing it up to reflect the years and months of creditable service calculated in accordance with section 2.1213. All vesting and contribution requirements shall then be construed as though such employee was hired on his Adjusted Employment Date."

#### SECTION 5.

Section 4.06 of the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for General Government Employees is hereby stricken and replaced by a new Section 4.06 to read as follows:

# "4.06 Pension Benefits Upon Reemployment:

If a former Member who is receiving a Pension is reemployed by the Government, the following rules shall apply:

(a) Full-Time Reemployment and Resumption of Pension: If such a Member is reemployed as a Full-Time Employee, those Pension payments shall stop, unless he is participating in the DROP as set forth in Section 4.04 above or is reemployed as an

- appointed or elected Councilor sworn in on or after July 1, 2024. Pension payments shall also stop during any suspension in DROP participation. During such period of reemployment or suspension in DROP participation no Pension payments shall be made. Upon subsequent Retirement of such a Member, such Pension payments shall again commence as of the first day of the month coincident with or next following such Retirement. The amount and form of such resumed Pension shall be the same as was being paid to such Member prior to reemployment as of his initial Pension commencement date.
- (b) <u>Part-Time Reemployment:</u> If such a Member is reemployed as a Part-Time Employee, those Pension payments shall continue uninterrupted.
- Eligibility for and Amount of Additional Pension: Upon reemployment, if the Employee meets the requirements of Section 2.21 as an Eligible Employee, such Employee shall again become a Member of this Plan on the date of reemployment, shall make Employee Contributions at the rate required of other new employees hired on that date, and shall accrue Credited Service and Vesting Service from the date of reemployment and again be entitled to accrue a benefit in accordance with the provisions of Section 4. However, in the determination of such a Member's Vesting Service, his prior years of Vesting Service shall be included in addition to his Vesting Service earned after reemployment; provided, however, solely for the purpose of determining the amount of his additional Pension, Credited Service shall accrue only from the date of such reemployment. No member who has participated in the DROP specified in Section 4.04 above shall be eliqible Additional Pension pursuant to this sub-section. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, a former Member who (i) is receiving a Pension and (ii) is reemployed by the Government as an appointed or elected Councilor on or after [July 1, 2024], shall not be eligible for an Additional Pension pursuant to this sub-section.
- (d) Form of Payment of Additional Pension: Upon subsequent Retirement by a Member after a period of reemployment, the monthly benefit determined in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 and based on Credited Service from the date of reemployment shall be in addition to the benefit provided for the prior period of employment and the provisions of Section 4.06 (c). The Pension earned by such a Member during the period of reemployment shall be payable in accordance with the provisions of Section 5."

#### SECTION 6.

Section 2.14 of the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for Employees of the Department of Public Safety is hereby amended by adding a new Section 2.14(g) to read as follows:

g) Former Members in Pay Status And Sworn In as an Appointed or Elected to Council on or after July 1, 2024. No employment service following the reemployment of a former Member in pay status who is sworn in as a Councilor on or after July 1, 2024, shall be considered Creditable Service.

#### SECTION 7.

Section 2.20 of the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for Employees of the Department of Public Safety is hereby amended by adding a new Section 2.20(e) to read as follows:

(e) Former Members in Pay Status And Sworn In as an Appointed or Elected to Council on or after July 1, 2024. No compensation earned as a Councilor following the reemployment of a former Member in pay status who is sworn in as a Councilor on or after July 1, 2024, shall be considered Earnings.

#### SECTION 8.

Section 2.25 of the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for Employees of the Department of Public Safety is hereby stricken and replaced by a new Section 2.25 to read as follows:

# "2.25 Full-Time Employee:

Any Employee whose customary employment is for at least forty (40) hours per week and for twelve (12) months during each calendar year and who is included in the "position classification plan" adopted by the Council. An Employee who is a court reporter, appointed judge or an appointed or elected Official of the Government shall be deemed a Full-Time Employee. A grant employee identified as "benefit eligible" by the grant administrator shall be deemed a Full-Time Employee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a retired Member in pay status who is appointed or elected to Council on or after July 1, 2024 shall not be deemed a Full-Time Employee for purposes of Sections 3.02 and 4.06 and shall not be entitled to receive any additional benefits under the Plan with respect to service as a Councilor."

#### SECTION 9.

Section 3.02 of the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for Employees of the Department of Public Safety is hereby stricken and replaced by a new Section 3.02 to read as follows:

"3.02 Membership Upon Reemployment: Except as provided in Section 4.06(c) regarding the reemployment of a retired Member in pay status, upon the reemployment of an Employee after termination of employment, he shall become a Member on his reemployment date, provided he is an Eligible Employee on such date and be subject to all requirements of new Members on that date. Any reemployed Member who satisfies the conditions set forth in Section 2.124(c) for re-establishing Creditable Service, shall be entitled to an Adjusted Employment Date which shall be calculated by taking his re-employment date and backing it up to reflect the years and months of creditable service calculated in accordance with section 2.124. All vesting and contribution requirements shall then be construed as though such employee was hired on his Adjusted Employment Date."

#### SECTION 10.

Section 4.06 of the Columbus, Georgia Pension Plan for Employees of the Department of Public Safety is hereby stricken and replaced by a new Section 4.06 to read as follows:

# "4.06 Pension Benefits Upon Reemployment:

If a former Member who is receiving a Pension is reemployed by the Government, the following rules shall apply:

(e) Full-Time Reemployment and Resumption of Pension: If such a Member is reemployed as a Full-Time Employee, those Pension payments shall stop, unless he is participating in the DROP as set forth in Section 4.04 above or is reemployed as an appointed or elected Councilor sworn in on or after July 1, 2024. Pension payments shall also stop during any suspension in DROP participation. During such period of reemployment or suspension in DROP participation no Pension payments shall be made. Upon subsequent Retirement of such a Member, such Pension payments shall again commence as of the first day of the month coincident with or next following such Retirement. The amount and form of such resumed Pension shall be the same as was being paid to such Member prior to reemployment as of his initial Pension commencement date.

- (f) <u>Part-Time Reemployment:</u> If such a Member is reemployed as a Part-Time Employee, those Pension payments shall continue uninterrupted.
- Eligibility for and Amount of Additional Pension: Upon reemployment, if the Employee meets the requirements of Section 2.22 as an Eligible Employee, such Employee shall again become a Member of this Plan on the date of reemployment, shall make Employee Contributions at the rate required of other new employees hired on that date, and shall accrue Credited Service and Vesting Service from the date of reemployment and again be entitled to accrue a benefit in accordance with the provisions of Section 4. However, in the determination of such a Member's Vesting Service, his prior years of Vesting Service shall be included in addition to his Vesting Service earned after reemployment; provided, however, solely for the purpose of determining the amount of his additional Pension, Credited Service shall accrue only from the date of such reemployment. No member who has participated in the DROP specified in Section 4.04 above shall be eligible Additional Pension pursuant to this sub-section. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, a former Member who(i) is receiving a Pension and (ii) is reemployed by the Government as an appointed or elected Councilor sworn in on or after July 1, 2024, shall not be eligible for an Additional Pension pursuant to this sub-section.
- (h) Form of Payment of Additional Pension: Upon subsequent Retirement by a Member after a period of reemployment, the monthly benefit determined in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 and based on Credited Service from the date of reemployment shall be in addition to the benefit provided for the prior period of employment and the provisions of Section 4.06 (c). The Pension earned by such a Member during the period of reemployment shall be payable in accordance with the provisions of Section 5."

#### SECTION 11.

This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption by the Columbus Council.

SECTION 12.

All ordinances ordinance are hereby		of ordinan	ces in	conflict	with	this	
Introduced at a Georgia held on the a second time at a reday ofaffirmative vote of _	day c gular meetin _, 2024 an	ofof ng of said d adopted	Council at sa	, 2024; in l held on id meetin	ntrodu the	iced	
Councilor Allen (Seat vacant) Councilor Begly Councilor Cogle Councilor Crabb Councilor Davis Councilor Garrett Councilor Huff Councilor Thomas Councilor Tucker	votingvot						
Sandra Davis Clerk of Council			B.H. Henderson III Mayor				